
CITY OF FAIRWAY  

5240 Belinder Road 

BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 

 AGENDA 

Monday, January 26, 2026 - 5:30 P.M. 

 

 

 

 

1. MINUTES. 

 

a. Approval of Minutes from meeting held September 29, 2025. 

 

2. OLD BUSINESS. 

 

None 

 

3.  NEW BUSINESS. 

 

a. Public Hearing to consider the variance request to Fairway 

Municipal Code Section 15-298(6) Emergency generators; 

Request for generator to be located within 12 ft of the property line 

and exceed seventy-five decibels (75dBA) at the property line as 

submitted by Philip Meyer (MacIntyre Family Trust) property 

owner, for property located at 5638 Aberdeen Rd, Fairway, KS. 

 

 

4.   ADDITIONAL BUSINESS. 

 

a. Next meeting date – pending applications   

 

5.  ADJOURNMENT 



THESE MINUTES ARE NOT FOR PUBLIC DISSEMINATION UNTIL THEY HAVE BEEN APPROVED BY 

THE FAIRWAY BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 

 

MINUTES OF THE PUBLIC HEARING 

OF THE BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 

OF THE CITY OF FAIRWAY, KANSAS 

The Board of Zoning Appeals of the City of Fairway, Kansas (the "Board") conducted a meeting on 

Monday, September 29, 2025.  The meeting was called to order at 5:30 P.M.   

Present: Board Members Patrick Wiederaenders, Amy Berlau, Doug Huffman, William 

Stafford. 

Absent: Board Member Peter Ho.   

Presiding:  Chair Chris Shank.   

Staff Present: City Clerk Abbie Aldridge; Zoning Counsel Anna Krstulic; Community Development 

Director Basil Alani; Recording Secretary Barb Fox. 

Visitors: Lance Larson, 3517 Eastvale Drive. 

1. MINUTES. 

a. APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM MEETING HELD JULY 29, 2024 

Chair Shank asked for a motion to approve the minutes from the July 29, 2024 meeting.   

MOTION: Motion was made by Mr. Wiederaenders to approve the July 29, 2024 minutes.  

Mr. Huffman seconded the motion. 

The motion carried unanimously. 

2. OLD BUSINESS. 

None.  

3. NEW BUSINESS. 

a. INTRODUCE NEW BOARDMEMBER JENNIFER SHEFFIELD 

 

Chair Shank announced that Marcia Downs has stepped down from the Board of Zoning Appeals.  

He thanked her for her service.  He introduced Jennifer Sheffield as a new Board Member and 

welcomed her to the Board. 

b. PUBLIC HEARING TO CONSIDER THE VARIANCE REQUEST TO 

FAIRWAY MUNICIPAL CODE 15-150a. – TO ALLOW BUILDING PERMIT 

TO BE ISSUED FOR CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITY CROSSING LOT LINE 

ON TWO SEPARATE LOTS OF COMMON OWNERSHIP AS SUBMITTED 

BY LANCE LARSON, PROPERTY OWNER, FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 

3517 EASTVALE DRIVE, FAIRWAY, KANSAS. 

Chair Shank opened the Public Hearing and requested the staff report.   



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 

SEPTEMBER 29, 2025 MEETING MINUTES 

 

2 

Director Alani reported that the applicant has common ownership of three parcel lots that comprise 

the property of 3517 Eastvale Drive.  With the principal building originally constructed across Lot 

18 and Lot 19.  Lot 16 is the rear portion of the backyard.  

The applicant is proposing a remodel and addition to the principal building, including a new pool 

and patio area.  The proposed project would result in construction across the lot lines.   

The Public Hearing was published and the applicant mailed notices to property owners within the 

200-foot buffer zone.  

If the Board of Zoning Appeals grants the requested variance, staff recommends the following 

conditions: 

1. Application to the Planning Commission to request an exception to the greenspace 

requirement. 

2. Application and approval is void if a building permit is not obtained within one year from 

the date of Board of Zoning Appeals approval. 

Responding to Chair Shank’s question, Director Alani stated that staff has not received any 

opposition from neighbors.  

Chair Shank asked the applicant to address the Board. 

Lance Larson, 3517 Eastvale Drive, stated that his family purchased the home in November of 

2024.  He explained that the existing home is built on two lots that are platted separately.  The 

home itself covers 30 to 40 feet on each side of the lot so the lot line runs down the middle of the 

existing home.  The home was originally built in 1964 and has had multiple renovations since then.   

Mr. Larson addressed the five criteria for granting a variance, as follows: 

1. The property is unique as there are very few properties in Fairway where the home is sitting 

on two lots, requiring a variance to get a building permit to do any renovations on the lot. 

2. The granting of the variance will not adversely affect the rights of adjacent property 

owners.  He has had discussions with neighbors to the east and west and they are both 

supportive of the project.  

3. He believes the strict application of the zoning ordinance would constitute unnecessary 

hardship in that the existing home was built on two lots.  There have been multiple 

renovations over the years and the owner did not have to seek a variance or was successful 

in obtaining one.  He has looked into the timing and cost of a replat, and it would take four 

to eight months and cost between $15,000 and $22,000.  He considers that a hardship. 

4. The variance requested will not adversely affect public welfare. 

5. The granting of the variance will not be opposed to the general spirt and intent of the zoning 

ordinance.  

Chair Shank asked if there were questions for the applicant.  

Chair Shank asked if there were comments from the public on this item.  Hearing none, he closed 

the Public Hearing.  

Mr. Huffman believes that the applicant has met the five criteria for granting the variance.  

Ms. Berlau agrees that the applicant has met the five criteria. 



BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS 

SEPTEMBER 29, 2025 MEETING MINUTES 

 

3 

Mr. Wiederaenders stated that because the situation is existing, he is supportive of the variance 

request and agrees that the applicant has met the five criteria. 

Mr. Stafford agrees that the applicant has met the five criteria.  

Ms. Sheffield agrees that the applicant has met the five criteria.   

Chair Shank thinks it would be a material hardship to force the applicant to go through the expense 

and delay of a replat.   The granting of the variance does not affect anyone’s rights.  He agrees that 

the five criteria for granting the variance have been met.    

Chair Shank asked for a motion. 

MOTION:  Motion was made by Mr. Huffman to approve the variance request to Fairway 

Municipal Code 15-150a – to allow building permit to be issued for construction activity 

crossing lot line on two separate lots of common ownership as submitted by Lance Larson 

property owner, for property located at 3517 Eastvale Drive, Fairway, Kansas, subject to 

staff recommendations.   

Ms. Berlau seconded the motion. 

Motion carried unanimously.  

4. ADDITIONAL BUSINESS. 

a. SET NEXT MEETING DATE.    

City Clerk Aldridge explained that the Board would be notified if there are any applications for 

August.      

5. ADJOURNMENT. 

MOTION: Ms. Berlau made a motion to adjourn.  Mr. Wiederaenders seconded the motion. 

Motion carried unanimously.  

 Meeting adjourned at 5:18 P.M. 

      ___________________________________ 

Abbie Aldridge, City Clerk 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

STAFF REPORT 

Board of Zoning Appeals 

January 26, 2026 

 

 

TO:   Chair Chris Shank  

     Board of Zoning Appeals Members 

   Anna Krstulic, Zoning Counsel 

 

FROM:    Basil Alani, Community Development Director 

   Abbie Aldridge, City Clerk 

 

APPLICANT:   Philip Meyer, Property Owner 

 

PROPERTY:  5638 Aberdeen RD- FAIRWAY LOT 41 BLK 4 FAC-0266  

ZONING:  R-1 

 

REQUEST: Variances for generator install location less than 12’ from property line and not 

meeting the 75db at the property line 

 

BACKGROUND: 

 

Applicant was granted variance approval from BZA on 04/26/2021 for a setback encroachment for new 

garage, the lot was determined to be an intersection lot per Sec. 15-296 (b)(3). Intersection lots do not 

have a back setback and the generator code sec 15-298(6) require an installation in the back yard  

 
Sec. 15-296. Dimension standards. 

(b) Corner lots 

(3) Intersection lot. Intersection lots are lots that have a dual orientation or are oriented to the 
intersection. These lots shall have two (2) front setbacks on each street side, and two (2) side setbacks 
on the interior sides, and no rear setback.  

a. Front setbacks: Same as required for all other lots and is applied to both street frontages, except 
that the setback may be adjusted to reflect the front building line of each adjacent building, but 
in no case closer than twenty-five feet (25') from the front lot line.  

b. Interior side setbacks: Same as required for all other lots and shall be applied to both interior lot 
lines.  

c. Rear setback: There is no rear setback for an intersection lot.  

 

 

 

 

VARIANCE REQUESTS: 

 



Sec. 15-298. Special conditions for uses. 

(6) Emergency generators. Permanent standby emergency generators shall be allowed as an accessory 
use, subject to the following conditions:  

a. A building permit is required prior to installation.  

b. The generator shall be installed in accordance with the National Fire Protection Association 
(NFPA) 37 Standards for the Installation and Use of Stationary Combustion Engines and Gas 
Turbines, and shall meet all other applicable building code requirements.  

c. The generator shall be connected to a natural gas line.  

d. The generator shall be contained in an enclosed cabinet or housing that provides sound 
attenuation, and the decibel level shall not exceed seventy-five decibels (75 dBA) at the property 
line.  

e. The footprint of the cabinet shall not exceed twelve square feet (12 sq. ft.).  

f. The generator shall be located within the building envelope but no further than five feet (5') from 
a wall of the principal building and not in a front or side yard, except that alternate locations may 
be approved by the Building Official or his/her designee for greater than five feet (5') from the 
wall and up to the minimum additional distance necessary to adequately address any safety and 
carbon monoxide issues.  

Exception. An exception may be granted to this location requirement upon a finding of the following:  

1. Special circumstances or conditions affecting the property;  

2. Generator is set back from side property line a minimum of twelve feet (12') to meet the 

sound limitation in Subsection (6)d. above;  

3. Location will not cause an adverse impact on the adjacent properties;  

4. Location will be adequately screened from the street by vegetation, walls, fences or any 

combination thereof; and  

5. Building Official or his/her designee may impose any screening or other condition it deems 

necessary to mitigate any negative impacts of the proposed location.  

In no event shall an exception be granted to locate a generator in any front yard.  

g. The generator shall be used only during emergency situations that result in power failures.  

h. The generator shall only be tested during daylight hours after 9:00 a.m., and not on any holiday.  

The applicant is requesting a variance to install the generator about 5.5’ from the property line which is 

less than 12’ code requirement which will increase the decibel above the required 75dba at the property 

line to 79.43 dba per Distance attenuation calculator by omni calculator 

 

 

REVIEW CRITERIA: 

 

Code Section 15-778(a) – Variances 

(a) Variances. The Board of Zoning Appeals may grant, in specific cases, a variance from the specific 

terms of the zoning regulations, which will not be contrary to the public interest and where, due to 

special conditions, a literal enforcement of the provisions of the zoning regulations, in an individual 
case, results in unnecessary hardship; and provided that, the spirit of the zoning regulations shall be 

observed, public safety and welfare secured, and substantial justice done. Variance shall permit any 
use not permitted by the zoning regulations for the applicable district. A request for a variance may be 

granted in this case upon a finding that all the following conditions have been met: 



(1) That the variance requested arises from a condition that is unique to the property in question and 

that is not ordinarily found in the same zone or district, and is not created by an action or actions 

of the property owners or the applicant; 

(2) That the granting of the variance will not adversely affect the rights of adjacent property owners 

or residents; 

(3) That the strict application of the zoning regulations from which a variance is requested will 

constitute unnecessary hardship upon the property owner represented in the application; 

(4) That the variance desired will not adversely affect the public health, safety, morals, order, 

convenience, prosperity or general welfare; and 

(5) That granting the variance desired will not be opposed to the general spirit and intent of the 

zoning regulations. 
 

Applicant submitted responses that address each of these criteria for the variance requested. The City 

received two letters in support of the variance 

 

The Public Hearing was published in the January 6, 2026, edition of The Legal record and the applicant 

mailed notices to property owners within the 200-foot buffer.  

 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 

If the Board of Zoning Appeals grants the requested variance, staff recommends the following conditions: 

 

1. Apply for generator permit and pay the permit fee.  

2. Application and approval is void if a building permit is not obtained within one year from the date of 

Board of Zoning Appeals approval.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



feet

feet

Per Generator
Specifications

Calculated at
proposed location





 



 



 



5638 Aberdeen – Generator has been delivered but NOT installed 

 View from the street 

   
View behind the fence 


















	BZA01262026agenda
	a. Approval of Minutes from meeting held September 29, 2025.

	September 29 2025 Board of Zoning Appeals Minutes
	MINUTES OF THE PUBLIC HEARING
	OF THE BOARD OF ZONING APPEALS

	5638 Aberdeen Rd
	Sec. 15-298. Special conditions for uses.

	Omni calculator
	Answers to the questions
	Plan with distance to property line by Basil
	show neighboring homes
	owner site plan
	5638 Aberdeen pictures of the property
	letters of support
	Generator spec.

